ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 9, 2005
9:35 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Jay Ranras
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 208

"An Act authorizing the Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans'
Affairs to establish and maintain an Al askan veterans' cenetery;
and establishing the Alaska veterans' cenetery fund in the
general fund."

- MOVED HB 208 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 238

"An Act relating to contribution rates for enployers and nenbers
in the defined benefit plans of the teachers' retirenment system
and the public enployees' retirement system and to the ad-hoc
post-retirenment pension adjustnent in the teachers' retirenent
system requiring insurance plans provided to nenbers of the
teachers' retirenment system the judicial retirement system the
public enployees' retirement system and the forner elected
public officials retirenent system to provide a list of
preferred drugs; relating to defined contribution plans for
menbers of the teachers' retirement system and the public
enpl oyees' retirement system and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 191

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2005



“"An Act relating to defined contribution systens for nenbers of

the teachers' retirement system and the public enployees’

retirement system and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 208

SHORT TI TLE: STATE VETERANS CEMETERY

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GUTTENBERG

03/ 07/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 07/ 05 (H) M.V, STA, FIN

03/ 31/ 05 (H M.V AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 31/ 05 (H Moved CSHB 208(M.V) Qut of Conmittee

03/ 31/ 05 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

04/ 01/ 05 (H M.V RPT CS(M.V) NT 5DP

04/ 01/ 05 (H) DP: GRUENBERG, DAHLSTROM ELKI NS,
THOVAS, LYNN

04/ 09/ 05 (H STA AT 9:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 238

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT

SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 30/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 30/ 05 (H STA, FIN

03/ 31/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106

03/ 31/ 05 (H Heard & Held

03/ 31/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 02/ 05 (H STA AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 02/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 02/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 05/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 05/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 07/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 07/ 05 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 09/ 05 (H STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REQ STER

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 208 as sponsor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- April 9, 2005



DANI ELLE BROW, St aff

to Representative David Cuttenberg

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
208, on behal f of Representative CGuttenberg, sponsor.

BENNO H. CLEVELAND

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Al aska Native
Vet erans' Association, Chapter 1, and the Mlitary Oder of
Purple Heart, Chapter 675, in support of HB 208.

MORGAN SOLOVON

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Veteran of
Foreign Wars (VFW 3629 and the Alaska Native Veterans
Associ ation during the hearing on HB 208.

DANA NACHTRI EB

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a life menber of the Marine
Corps League, Detachnent 674, and on behalf of the Veterans of
Foreign Wars (VFW 3629, during the hearing on HB 208.

DENNI S GOLDBACH

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Purple Heart
Soci ety during the hearing on HB 208.

DARREL DORSHER, State Legislative Oficer

Vet erans of Foreign Wars of Al aska

Dougl as, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Veterans of
Foreign Wars of Al aska in support of HB 208.

MELANI E M LLHORN, Director

Heal th Benefits Section

D vision of Retirenent & Benefits

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Reviewed a portion of Version L and
answered comm ttee questions during the hearing on HB 238.

KATHY LEA, Retirenment Manager
Heal th Benefits Section

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2005



Di vision of Retirement and Benefits

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
di vision during the hearing on HB 238.

KATHERI NE SHOAS, St af f

to Representative Seaton

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned the existence of certain | anguage
in HB 238, Version L, on behalf of Representative Seaton,
sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:35:11 AM Represent ati ves
Seaton, Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, and Gardner were present at the
call to order. Representatives Guenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 208- STATE VETERANS' CEMETERY

9:36: 29 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 208, "An Act authorizing the Departnent of
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs to establish and maintain an
Al askan veterans' cenetery; and establishing the Al aska
veterans' cenetery fund in the general fund."

9: 36: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAVID GUTTENBERG, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 208, stated that the proposed |egislation would
provi de veterans who live in Alaska with a place to be laid to
rest. He referred to the sponsor statenment [included in the
comm ttee packet].

9:38:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER directed attention to [a two-page e-nai

in the conmttee packet, sent by Bill Jayne of the US.
Department of Veterans Affairs, showing an estimate of the total
grant cost for design, construction, and operating equi pment for
the Interior]. She suggested that the costs incurred when a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2005



veteran is buried would be a cost already incurred rather than
an additional cost.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG concurr ed.
9:39:19 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that there would be a
federal offset anobunt for design, construction, and operating
equi pnrent, but the state would be responsible for the land and
the operation and maintenance. He asked Representative
Guttenberg to discuss the plot allowance.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said the veteran plot allowance is
$300. He stated his understanding that that would cover the
i nterment .

CHAI R SEATON asked if that would depend upon whether the veteran
was going to be buried at no charge by the state.

DANI ELLE BROWN, Staff to Representative David Guttenberg, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Guttenberg,
sponsor, clarified that the [Departnent of Veterans Affairs
(federal - succeeded the Veterans Adm nistration in 1989, called
VA)] plot allowance is $300 per veteran, and it would include
t he interment.

CHAI R SEATON offered clarification that the state is required to
bury the veteran at no cost, at which tine the plot allowance
woul d conpensate the state for conducting that burial. He asked
if that statement is accurate.

M5. BROMWN answered in the affirmati ve.
9:41: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked who would pay for the spouse of a
vet er an.

9:41: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said he imagines anyone who s
eligible would receive the plot allowance. He said the purpose
of the bill is not to add or subtract to the eligibility
requi renents that are set by the VA

9:41: 54 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked where the proposed cenetery mght be
| ocated and how the | and woul d be acquired.

9:42: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG responded that there is no designated
pl ace. He suggested that sonmeone could donate the property or
the state could find a piece of land to purchase. He said that
issue is not addressed in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG, in response to a followup question
from Representative Lynn, said the land would need to be a
m ni mum of 20 acres.

9:43: 29 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked a question regardi ng spouses.

9:43: 43 AM

M5. BROMWN directed attention to [a seven-page handout i ncluded
in the comittee packet, entitled, "Buri al & Menori al
Benefits"]. She indicated that the state wll mrror the
national requirenents. In response to a question from Chair

Seaton, she pointed out that there are guidelines regarding
spouses and dependents on page 5 of the handout, which detail
who is eligible for burial in a national cenetery.

9:45: 31 AM

CHAI R SEATON, in response to a comment by Representative ElKins,
stated his presunption that "non-service" neans a person no
longer in the active mlitary. In response to Representatives
Lynn and Gardner, he said:

Everything that |'ve seen says [there will] be a $300
pl ot allowance to the veteran. There are other people
that are eligible to be buried there. | just want to
make sure ... that we have in the record whether the
plot allowance is given to spouses [and] eligible
dependents, or whether the state is required to pick
up the full tab for those eligible dependents w thout
charge, or whether the state ..., as operating this
cenetery, wll be charging at sone rate - whatever
that variable rate is.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2005



9:47: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said he doesn't have that answer at
present, but would provide one to the commttee. He reiterated
that this bill is not changing any of the VA s already existing
requirenents.

CHAI R SEATON said he is not neaning that the commttee would
"make it different for this veteran cenetery than the other,"
but he said it's incunbent on the conmttee to understand the
program

9:48: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG in response to a question from
Representative Gatto, said he is not certain how dishonorable
di scharges are treated. In response to a followup question
from Representative Gatto, he said, for exanple, a deceased
veteran in Fairbanks who left wishes to be buried in a veteran's
cenetery would be interred in Anchorage or Sitka. He said,
"From that <cenetery's perspective, they probably have a
quarterly report for the VA [regarding] how many people were

buried, and it would just beconme a billing situation; ... it's a
standi ng grant program - how nmany we buried. It would be the
same thing whether you were buried up on the hill ... in the
| ocal comunity cenetery." He enphasized the inportance of

| eaving clear instructions regarding |ast w shes.
9:51:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that in the previously nentioned e-
mail from M. Jayne, a sentence read: "The allowance is payable
for each veteran buried at no cost.” She said she thinks the
inplication is that the $300 allowance is for the veteran only.

CHAIR SEATON told Representative Guttenberg that, before the
bill is heard in the House Finance Conmittee, it would be
advisable to find out whether all the other eligible people
would pay for the internment services or whether the state is
required to pick up that tab. He stated that he doesn't want to
hold up the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS echoed Chair Seaton's remark that he
doesn't want to hold the bill up in the commttee.

9:52:48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2005



BENNO H. CLEVELAND testified on behalf of the Alaska Native
Vet erans' Association, Chapter 1, and the Mlitary Oder of
Purple Heart, Chapter 675, in support of HB 208. He noted that
he is also associated wth: the American Legion; the D sabled
Anmerican Veterans (DAV); and the Mrine Corps League, Detachnent
674. He stated that one of the rights of a veteran is to have
full mlitary services when he/she dies. He said there is a
| arge population [of veterans] in Fairbanks and there are not
enough burial plots avail able.

CHAIR SEATON assured M. Ceveland that the commttee has no
intention of questioning the right and privilege of every
veteran, but is looking to establish a new cenetery in Fairbanks
for Interior Al aska.

9:56: 44 AM

MORGAN SOLOMON, Veteran of Foreign Wars (VFW 3629; Al aska
Native Veterans Association, said, "I'ma life nenber there and
also a life nenber up in Barrow, Al aska." He said he was
surprised to see HB 208. He said Birch H Il Cenetery in
Fairbanks is filling to capacity. He said a new cenetery in
Fai rbanks would benefit the veterans. He indicated that a

veteran from the Interior should not have to be buried in
Anchorage. M. Sol onon concluded, "For your information, in the
Interior we have many veterans that are forgotten, one way or
t he ot her."

9:58:43 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that data shows there are 11,164 veterans in
the Fairbanks North Star Borough "and the three adjoining
areas," and "we definitely want to nmake sure that we have area
to take care of them"

9:59: 03 AM

DANA NACHTRIEB testified as a life nmenber of the Marine Corps
League, Detachnent 674, and the Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW
3629. He noted that he is also a 32-year nenber of the Elks
Lodge, a nenber of the Anerican Legion, and a nenber of the
Al aska Native Veterans Association. Regarding the previous
commttee discussion regarding dishonorable discharge, he drew
attention to the first page of the "Burial Benefits Eligibility"
handout, which shows who is eligible as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2005



(1) Any nenber of the Armed Forces of the United
States who dies on active duty.

(2) Any veteran who was discharged under conditions
ot her than di shonorable. Wth certain exceptions,
service beginning after Septenber 7, 1980, as an
enlisted person, and service after Cctober 16, 1981,
as an officer, nust be for a mninmm of 24 continuous
months or the full period for which the person was
called to active duty (as in the case of a Reservist
called to active duty for a Ilimted duration).
Undesirable, bad conduct, and any other type of
di scharge other than honorable may or nay not qualify
the individual for veterans benefits, depending upon a
determnation nmade by a VA Regional Ofice. Cases
presenting nultiple discharges of varying character
are also referred for adjudication to a VA Regional
Ofice.

MR. NACHTRIEB noted that the sixth page of the sanme handout
shows categories of those who would not be qualified for burial
in a VA national cenetery. [ The third category, "Disqualifying
Characters of Discharge,” read as fol |l ows:]

A person whose only separation from the Arnmed Forces
was under dishonorable conditions or whose character
of service results in a bar to veterans benefits.

MR. NACHTRIEB said the Marine Corp League, Detachnent 674, at
last count is 100 percent in favor of having a veterans'
cenetery in Fairbanks so that famlies don't have to drive to
Anchor age. Personally, he stated his belief that there should
be a veterans' cenetery "in every county, borough, and parish
t hroughout the United States" because it is "ridiculous" to nmake
people travel across their state to visit the burial site of
their past friends and | oved ones.

10: 01: 21 AM

DENNI S GOLDBACH, Purple Heart Society, told the commttee he
wears many other hats |ike the previous testifiers. He said
nothing is being requested that other cities don't already have.
He said he is retired and volunteers his tine to work wth
vet erans. Many of them he said, don't have the peace of mnd
that they had before joining the mlitary. He indicated that
providing a cenetery those veterans know will be waiting for
them would provide them with that piece of mnd while they're

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 9, 2005



still alive, and may cut down the cost of counseling. Because
of the distance to drive to the existing ceneteries, visiting

buried | oved ones becones an annual trip for people. He said
people are also deprived of the personal aspect of a mlitary
funeral . He expressed appreciation for the concerns of

"everybody" regarding the bill.

10: 04: 19 AM

DARREL DORSHER, State Legislative Oficer, Veterans of Foreign
Wars of Al aska, stated support of HB 208 on behalf of those
veterans, particularly for the cenmetery and "the concept of the
license plates and the $300 veterans' death benefit allowance."
He added, "I'm sure that the criteria will be set to follow the
federal VA standards for veterans and their famlies ." He
indicated that having a cenetery in Fairbanks would allow
veteran's famlies in the Fairbanks area to honor their famlies
on holidays such as Menorial Day.

MR. DORSHER told the commttee that his wife's cremated remains
were interred at a VA national cenetery in Mnnesota, and when
he dies he will join her there. He enphasized the inportance of
having a DD 214 available, which is required for the $300
al l omance. He said, "Every veteran should have that very handy,
and their famly should know where it is located at all tines."

10: 06: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG t hanked his constituent, WM. Dorsher,
for his testinony.

10: 07: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated for the record that a [DD 214] is "a
mlitary port of separation” that every veteran has.

10: 07: 24 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that public testinony was cl osed.

10: 07: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO renmarked that there is a ot he didn't know
about burials before reading the information provided to the
comm ttee. For exanple, there is a requirenent that the I|and
provi ded must be able to hold veterans, their spouses, and their
m nor children for 20 years.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- April 9, 2005



10: 08:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG in response to a question from
Representative Gatto, reiterated that he has not yet addressed
the subject of where the land will be found. In response to a
foll owup question from Representative Gatto, he said there is a
grant program for the construction of the cenetery up to 100
percent . He explained that the $300 is just to cover the
i nternent. He said he imagines the other costs, such as the
cerenony and fl owers, would be the famly's responsibility.

10: 09: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 208 out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 208 was reported from the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

#

The conmm ttee took an at-ease from 10:09:40 AMto 10: 16: 27 AM

HB 238- PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT

CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 238, "An Act relating to contribution rates for
enployers and nenbers in the defined benefit plans of the
teachers' retirement system and the public enployees' retirenent
system and to the ad-hoc post-retirenment pension adjustment in
the teachers' retirement systenmy requiring insurance plans
provided to nenbers of the teachers' retirenent system the
judicial retirement system the public enployees' retirenent
system and the fornmer elected public officials retirenent
systemto provide a list of preferred drugs; relating to defined
contribution plans for nenbers of the teachers' retirenent
system and the public enployees’ retirement system and
providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 238, Version 24-LS0761\L, Craver, 4/8/05, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version L was before the
comm ttee.

10:19: 11 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 15 [of Version L], and
asked the representatives of the Dyvision of Retirenent &

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2005



Benefits to offer their feedback. Specifically, he noted that a

phrase [on page 15, line 4] read, "retire directly from the
plan", while a phrase [in the next sentence on line 5] read
"retire from the plan". He asked if the division would like to

see the word "directly” in both places.

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Health Benefits Section, D vision of
Retirement & Benefits, Departnent of Admnistration, responded
that she thinks "it works" [to add "directly"].

10: 21: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he thinks the |anguage is "clunsy."

10: 22: 30 AM

M5. M LLHORN, in response to a remark by Chair Seaton, said the
definition for "plan" is found on page 17, beginning on |ine 15.

10: 22: 49 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he would flag the area on page 15 as needing a
definition of "plan". Notwi t hstanding that, he asked which
term nol ogy woul d be best regarding retiring and the pl an.

10: 23: 32 AM

M5. MLLHORN clarified as foll ows:

Retirement, wunder the defined contribution plan, can

be at any point in time .... VWhat this is really
speaking to is when you becone eligible for nedical
benefits under the plan. So, ... that's the

di stinction when we're tal king about retiring fromthe
plan is that you also, satisfying certain criteria,
woul d be eligible for nedical benefits.

10: 24: 37 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he would flag that area for future discussion.
Conti nui ng the discussion of page 15, he highlighted that one of
the options that "the nenber has at |east 30 years of service"
is applicable at any age. The other option is that "the nenber
reaches the normal retirenent age and has at |east 10 years of
service." He read lines 10-11: "(b) The normal retirenent age
is 60 nonths | ess than the age set for Medicare eligibility.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2005



10: 25: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what would happen if the Medicare
eligibility age is changed during a person's career.

10: 26: 03 AM

M5. M LLHORN specul ated that the nunber to go by would be the
age set for Medicare eligibility on a person's retirenent date.

10: 26: 33 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he wants that to be clear on the record. He
suggested adding "at the tinme of retirenent” after "the age set
for Medicare eligibility.” He said he would flag that, as well.

10: 27: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG offered his understanding that,
constitutionally, when a person's rights vest, he/she then has a
constitutional right that cannot be changed wi thout violating
that section of the constitution. He offered further details.

CHAI R SEATON told Representative Guenberg that it's anticipated
that the governnent will nove that nunber back and has already
done so to the age of 67 "for sone folks." He said original
| anguage in the bill is 60 and 65, "because those are the
current ones." He said the intent is to vest enployees and have
everyone know edgeabl e about what benefits they wll accrue.
Those benefits that accrue are related to Medicare eligibility.
He added, "Because that's when the premum split comes between
what this plan can supply and what is supplied by the federa
gover nnent . "

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said he understands that but is
considering what people' s reasonable expectations are and what
their constitutional rights are. He gave an exanpl e.

CHAI R SEATON said, "If you tell sonebody they have a benefit at
60 when they cone to work, they'll have a benefit at age 60. |If
you tell them and their agreenent is, that they wll get 60
nmont hs pre-Medi care prem um support, then | don't know how they
could attach a particular age to that, because what vyou're
saying is, "This is the anpunt of benefit you' re going to have;
you're going to have 60 nonths of pre-Medicare eligibility
benefit." Chair Seaton stated that so far he doesn't think

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- April 9, 2005



there is a problem with this issue, but Legislative Legal and
Research Services could be asked for a further opinion.

10: 33: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS stated, "That's what we're here for; we
want to build a plan that protects the retirees. And if the
[federal] |aw does change, and we haven't got that area covered
so that we've drawn enough noney, we're still responsible, |
feel, to pick that up until Medicare kicks in."

CHAIR SEATON said the commttee nust make a policy call in
deciding whether to set the age at 60 and, no natter what
happens, provide the unantici pated anmounts, or to set a tine of
60 nonths pre-Medicare premum support. In response to a
comment by Representative Guenberg, he said, "I don't want to
go beyond this until we westle with it and decide what we want
to do."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he doesn't want the commttee and
the public to think that those are the only two choi ces.

CHAI R SEATON replied, "Those are the two choices that we have in
the two bills before us. We have HB 191, which has Medicare
eligibility being the start point for a subsidy on health care
costs, and we have HB 238, which currently ... [in Version L]
gi ves 60 nmont hs pre- Medi care eligibility.” He told
Representative Gruenberg that if he wants to offer an anmendnent
for another option, that would be fine.

10: 36: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said every tinme the commttee neets it
becones nore apparent to him that this issue needs a |ot of
wor k. He conti nued:

| don't see how we can pass this out this session.
And | would think for the safety of the retirees and
future retirees of the State of Alaska, that we need
some commttee work this sumrer just to -- you know,
this issue is too inportant to slam it through here
and put out a bad piece of ... legislation. | cone to
one neeting [and] | think I've got a handle on it; |
come to the next and | don't know.

CHAI R SEATON questioned whether neetings would take place when
the commttee nenbers are spread across the state during the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2005



Interim He noted that the commttee is neeting on Saturdays
for the purpose of dealing with this issue. He said, "I think
we're doing exactly the right thing in discussing the philosophy
of where we want to go ...."

10: 38: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her appreciation of Chair
Seaton's |eadership and his years dealing with the issue in
advance of the rest of the conmttee. She said in the issue at
hand that it seens clear that the question is whether to put the
state's interest first or the enpl oyees' interest.

CHAI R SEATON answered that's correct. He said he thinks people

are very cautious not to create a systemthat will have unfunded
liabilities built into it. He said, "It's not just the state;
it's ... 154 enployers that are in this system with us. And
every one of them gets stuck with whatever we design.” He

of fered further details.

10:41: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said it wll be inpossible to supply a
benefit to enployees if the state goes into ruin; therefore, the
goal of the legislature is to save the enployees' benefits by
ensuring the state doesn't get itself so deeply entrenched in
payi ng benefits that it can't afford.

10: 41: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded, "I guess when Chicken Little
said the sky was falling, the real question was whether it was."

10: 42: 14 AM

CHAI R SEATON said that's true. He added that, considering the
paynment schedules that will have to be made over the next years,
by the year 2015, the state will be paying $300 million of the
retirement benefits that haven't been collected. He continued:

Now, we can put that all on the school districts, but

they have no tax base. So, what the legislature's
done to date with the $38 million that ... we put into
the budget - and that's just the very tip of this
escalating curve - is ... picked up that PERS/ TRS
nmoney to the school district. But that grows to $300
mllion a year, instead of $38 nillion. And ... the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 9, 2005



guestion is, "Is that sustainable? Can we do that?

If we have those kinds of liabilities, will we be
able to pass school budgets that increase anything for
the classes?" | nmean, that is nore why we're here, |
think, and why we're westling with this, than the
retirement system is: "What is the budgetary effect
going to be on everything el se we do?"

10: 43: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said Chair Seaton is right. This issue
deals with fiscal policy - where the state is going to raise
nmoney and where it wll spend it. He indicated that federa
taxes are sonething over which the state has no control. He
said he thinks this is a solvable problem but it needs to be
put into perspective.

10: 45: 23 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated, "Really what we're comng to here, folks,
i S: What [are] the nedical benefits that we're wlling to
charge the enployers and the enployee? Because, under our
defined contribution program . we had a 10 percent
enpl oyee/ 10 percent enployer match, and ... if we want to crank
up the contribution, all of the nedical has to conme from the
enpl oyer. ™ He offered further details. He said no one is

comng to the legislature with an answer on a silver platter
the conmttee nust create the best benefit package that it can.

CHAI R SEATON turned to page 5 of Version L, which shows that the
enpl oyer contribution under [HB 238] would be 11 percent. The
breakdown of that 11 percent is shown [in the followng
subsections]. [ Subsection (b)] shows what goes into the
retirement portion, and [subsection (c)] shows that the health
care benefit would be at 3.75 percent. [ Subsection (d)] shows
that the enployer would contribute 1.5 percent for the health
care reinbursenment account (HRA). If the conmittee wants to
provide a larger benefit it can "crank up these nunbers.™ He
noted that the normal cost rate from 1980 through 2003 was 11. 16
percent average. [HB 238] would keep that rate the sane. Chair
Seaton said the $300 nmillion liability will still have to be
paid, but [HB 238] offers a plan to replace the system that
created that liability.

10: 49: 11 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- April 9, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER renmarked that benefits work in harnony
with salary levels - one can be less if the other is higher.
She said, "W don't know what the other half of the whole
package is, so when we try to figure out what is adequate and
responsi ble for recruiting and retaining good enployees, we're
operating in a vacuumto sone extent here."

CHAIR SEATON said he agrees. Furt her nore, he said
Representative Gardner is talking about today, while the
commttee is trying to project the retirement |ife of new
enpl oyees coming in over the next 25 years. He said there are
enpl oyee/ enpl oyer surveys avail abl e. He nmentioned other issues

that need to be consi dered.

10: 51: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG nentioned a related bill that he
t hought noved out of conmmttee too fast and said he thinks it's
inmportant to give this inportant issue careful consideration so
that constituents are happy with the outcone.

CHAI R SEATON assured Representative Guenberg he doesn't think
[ HB 238] is anywhere near ready to be noved out of conmttee.

10: 55: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS directed attention page 15, [lines 28-29],
whi ch shows one category eligible for major nedical insurance as
foll ows:

(3) a nmenber who reaches the nornma
retirement age as provided in AS 14.25.470, has at
| east 10 years of service, and retires directly from
t he pl an;

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if that would affect those who
al ready qualified at 5 years.

10: 56: 58 AM

CHAI R SEATON reni nded Representative Elkins that the plan before
the coommittee is for a new tier |evel and would not affect those
in Tier 1.

10: 57: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS responded as fol |l ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 9, 2005



| understand what you're saying. But | still believe
that school board nenbers, city council nenbers, and
people in that category contribute such a small anount

in. ... I"mone of those people, and | can tell you
|"ve taken out of the system 50 or 100 tinmes nore than
was ever paid out on ny behalf. And | think it's
wong. | love the system but | think to protect the
health of any future system ... those people who
serve on those governing bodies should be excluded.
|'ve always thought that; when | was on the borough
assenbly | fought against it and kept it off for the
three years | was there - we didn't join. But 1'd

like to see us address that in detai

10: 58: 32 AM

CHAIR SEATON said Representative Elkins is right regarding
nmedi cal eligibility.

10: 58: 53 AM

M5. MLLHORN reported that, currently, "elected officials" need
to have 10 years of service in order to be eligible for nedica

benefits. She indicated that there are currently 375 active
nmenbers of the retirenent system who are elected officials, and
she surm sed that many of those may be in Tier I1Il and would

have to serve 10 years of service in order to be eligible. That
group of 375 represents .003 percent of the total active PERS
and TRS nenbers.

CHAI R SEATON said he thinks Representative Elkins' concern is
that the design of that system neans that "you have sonebody
getting a free lunch,” because hardly anything 1is being
collected from their enploynent status "at 50 bucks a nonth,”
but they receive the sane benefits.

11: 00: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS clarified his point as foll ows:

The way the system works, if | wunderstand it right,
even under the 10-year plan, if they put 10 years on
the school board, for exanple, and conme out and go to
work driving [a] truck for the state for three years -
their high three - then the ... municipality pays the
bi ggest portion of the premum based on that higher

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 9, 2005



salary. That's why, in nmy opinion, the municipalities
can't afford to be in this system for the nonregul ar
enpl oyees.

11: 00: 59 AM

M5. MLLHORN told Representative Elkins that right now enpl oyers
have the opportunity - through their participation agreenent -
to exclude those parties from nmenbership, so they have total
control over the cost.

11: 01: 22 AM

CHAIR SEATON noted that at least one of the cities in his
district has taken the option to exclude any future city counci
menbers from participation in the system He indicated that
this is in response to the bills the cities are finally getting
totali ng hundreds of thousands of dollars owed to the enpl oyees
who did not contribute nuch

11: 01: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS stated one of his pet peeves is that the
| egi sl ature opens the door and gives the responsibility [to the
muni ci palities] to opt out and close that door. He said he
t hi nks that onus should be on the | egislature.

CHAI R SEATON i ndi cated that he woul d accept an anmendnent to that
effect as the conmmttee noves forward with the bill.

11: 02: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  ELKI NS, in response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, said he would not then allow the
muni ci pal enpl oyers to opt in.

11: 02: 45 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he would like to know at this point whether
the commttee is in general agreenent regarding the norma
retirement age being set at 60 nonths [l ess than the age set for
Medicare eligibility].

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he agrees philosophically and wants to

see the intentions put in "bold print" so that there are no
surprises to new enpl oyees.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 9, 2005



11: 04: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said, "I don't want to be surprised when
retirenent tinme cones."”

11: 04: 24 AM

CHAI R SEATON reviewed page 15, subsection (d), which read as
fol |l ows:

(d) A nenber who continues in the enploy of the
enpl oyer after reaching normal retirenent age shal
continue to participate in the plan and to have
contributions allocated to the nmenber's account.

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 15, lines 17-21, which
read as foll ows:

Sec. 14.25.480. Medical benefits. (a) The nedical benefits
available to eligible persons are access to the retiree nmgjor
nmedi cal insurance plan and to the health reinbursenent account.
Access to the retiree major nedical insurance plan neans that an
eligible person nay not be denied insurance coverage except for
failure to pay the required prem um

11: 06: 08 AM

M5. MVLLHORN requested on behalf of the division that the
committee strike the word "insurance" [throughout subsection
(a)], because the plan is self-funded and the use of the word
i nsurance may denote that the Division of Insurance would have
regul atory authority. She also asked that the word "nedical" be
inserted after "denied".

11: 07:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said he thinks there should be
notification to menbers and the legislature if the federal age

for Medicare changes. He said the question is whether the
presunption is "that the state will go along with it" and at
that point will "decouple,” or whether it would not and would

have to "couple."

11: 09: 12 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he woul d oppose that because the decision has
to be made at this point in time. The conmttee is designing a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 9, 2005



plan and, under the Alaska state Constitution, the |legislature
sets the paraneters and the enployees have the ability to
understand those paraneters "throughout their Jlifetinme of
enpl oynment . "

11:11: 05 AM

M5. MLLHORN said she would like to address the issue of
notification. She said the division has the responsibility to
educate, counsel, and notify nenbers about plan benefits at the
time those nenbers are enployed, and at any tine in the future
in which the plan changes. She said the division takes that
responsibility seriously and would endeavor to ensure that
menbers, the legislature, and any interested parties would know
about changes with adequate notice. She said the information is
also listed on the division's Wb page.

11:12: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the word insurance al so appears
on page 15, |ine 22.

11:13: 07 AM

CHAI R SEATON continued reviewing Version L, on the rest of page
15, and on to page 16.

11:14: 02 AM

M5. M LLHORN directed attention to page 16, [lines 4-6], which
read as foll ows:

(d) Retiree major nmedical insurance plan coverage
elected by a surviving spouse of a [sic] eligible
menber under this section covers the surviving spouse
and the dependent children of the surviving spouse.

M5. MLLHORN asked that line 6 be changed to read, "dependent
children of the eligible nmenber who are dependent on the
survi vi ng spouse.”

11:15: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG st at ed:

At least for tax purposes ..., | think you can be a
dependent of sonebody if vyou're living in their

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 9, 2005



househol d and you're dependent upon them You don't
have to be a child. Here, if you want to Iimt it to

the child who is the child by ... blood or
adoption of both the surviving spouse and the deceased
eligible nenber, then you should say it a little
differently. | think ... what you should say is,

"dependent children of the surviving spouse and the
el igible nmenber.™

CHAI R SEATON proffered, "Therefore, if they were children of the
spouse who had married the nmenber, they would not be eligible
because they weren't children of the nmenber and spouse.™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that's exactly his point.

11:18: 10 AM

CHAIR SEATON indicated that, regarding the health -care
rei mbursenent account, there are projections of premuns going
up $28-30,000 "in the time-frame of when sonebody cones into
this system and retires.” He illustrated that it is one thing
to cover the spouse and dependents of a retired active enpl oyee,
yet quite another to cover the spouse and any adopted children
froma marriage that occurs after the nenber retires. He said,
"This is totally a policy call.” As health care premuns start
increasing to $30,000, there could be many types of structures
within the system For exanple, he said, "W could have
grandparents adopting their grandchildren for coverage, and they
woul d be covered for 20-sonme years." He offered other exanples
of how people could work the systemto their advantage.

11:21:24 AM

M5. MLLHORN responded that there is a tax-qualified plan for
medi cal benefits. She enphasized the inportance of having a
clear definition of who is eligible, and said that definition
must conport with 26 U S. C. 152. She said, "W have |ooked at
this issue very carefully and we understand the consequences of
not being clear with that |anguage."

CHAI R SEATON asked if there is any language in the U S. code
that states that coverage nust be provided for a spouse who was
not a spouse during active enpl oynent.

11: 23: 32 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 9, 2005



M5. M LLHORN offered her understanding that the code "doesn't
differentiate; it just defines 'spouse'."

CHAI R SEATON said he wants to get the opinion of the attorney
general and Legislative Legal and Research Services to find out
whet her the legislature can restrict the definition of "spouse"
and "dependent” children to those spouses and dependent children
that existed during the period of the nenbers active enpl oynent.

11:24: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for confirmation that "when
sonebody gets divorced they split the retirenent benefits on
occasion" and "they can require as part of the divorce decree
t hat whoever has the nedical coverage retain[s] the prem uns so
t hat the other spouse retains nedical coverage."

KATHY LEA, Retirenent Manager, Health Benefits Section, D vision
of Retirement & Benefits, Departnent of Adm nistration, answered
Representative Gardner as foll ows:

Currently, an ... ex-spouse can have access only
through qualified donestic relations order. So, if
there is a divorce after the nenber has retired, all
that the alternate payee can get is access to the
nmedi cal plan; they have to pay full premium for it
regardless of what the nenber's eligibility for
systempaid prem uns are.

M5. LEA, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said that

is the case after a nmenber's death, as well. She clarified,
"Any alternate payee only has access to the nedical plan.
Regardl ess of whether the nenber is living or ... the domestic

relations order becones effective upon the nenber's death, they
nmust pay the full prem um for medical coverage.

11: 26: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understanding that there is
"even COBRA [ Conprehensive Omibus Budget Reform Act] coverage
for three years.™ He concluded that the ex-spouse is eligible
for that coverage but has to pay the premumfor three years.

11: 26: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO made up a scenario in which an 85-year-old
retired active menber has lost his wife and children, has been

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- April 9, 2005



told he has three nonths to live, and narries the wonan next
door who has a dozen adopted children. He asked if the plan
woul d cover themall.

11: 27: 50 AM

M5. LEA answered that a nmenber who retires unmarried can remarry
and cover that spouse and dependent children while he/she is
living; however, once that person dies that coverage ends.

11: 28: 58 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he doesn't think that |anguage is in [HB 238].
He asked Ms. Lea to pull that |anguage out of existing statutes
and get it to the commttee.

11: 29: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for clarification that t he
commttee is proposing that the spouse and dependents that exist
for an active nenber before retirenent would be covered after
the menber's retirenent and after the nenber's death. However ,
if the nenber is not narried at the tinme his/her retirenent, but
marries a spouse with children after retirenent, that spouse and
children are covered while the retiree is alive, but not after
he/ she di es.

CHAI R SEATON responded yes. He offered his understanding that
"the spouse and dependents that cone on after retirenent are
access only." He asked if that is correct.

MS. LEA responded as foll ows:

Currently, they come under the retiree's eligibility.
So, if the retiree is living, they can cover themwth
systempaid premuns if the retiree's eligible for
system paid prem uns. After death, if it's an after-
death coverage, that would end in the current system
And that's principally because, in the [defined
benefit (DB)] plan, you're required to elect a joint
and survivor option if you want nmedical coverage to
continue after your death for your spouse and
dependent children. So, that's the nechani sm by which
you pay it under the DB plan. If no joint and
survivor option is elected, regardless of whether the
spouse was a spouse at the tine of retirenent, the
coverage would end at the end of the nenber's life,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 9, 2005



because there was no provision for continuing benefit.
So, that's the mechanism we're using currently in the
DB pl ans.

The difference with this [defined contribution (DC)]
plan is ... you ve broken off the medical fromreally
any tie to a retirenent pension benefit.

11: 31: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO revisited his previous scenario and asked
if the menber who was 85 and had three nonths to live gets
hi nsel f appointed to the school board just before dying, would
the wife with the dozen adoptees retain the benefits?

11: 32: 01 AM

MS. LEA responded as foll ows:

Under the current system if you had not retired, or
if you had elected to stop your Dbenefit and
participate again in the retirenent system you could
elect a joint survivor, and yes, you could provide
t hat coverage for the new spouse and new chil dren.

Under the way this is currently witten, they also
woul d be covered, because you would have a surviving
spouse, and if you adopted the children they would be
your | egal, dependent children.

REPRESENTATIVE GATTO said the pur pose of the current
conversation of the commttee is to prevent the state from
sinking under the weight of "things that we've never
anticipated.”

CHAI R SEATON rem nded Representative Gatto that Representative
El kins had suggested exenpting those types of enployees that
don't put in sufficient time to help cover the cost of their
benefits, such as a school board menber or city council nenber.

11: 34: 56 AM

MS5. M LLHORN asked:

Is it accurate to say that your intent would be to
change the | anguage to ensure that the nenber who was
marri ed, and those dependents, would ... have coverage

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- April 9, 2005



at the tinme that they were appointed to retirenent
but if they were to divorce, that future coverage for
those dependents would ... not exist. s that
accurate?

CHAI R SEATON repl i ed:

It would be that the dependents and spouse acquired
after active service would not be covered.

M5. M LLHORN said that was her understandi ng.

11:35: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, in reference to Ms. MIIlhorn's question,
clarified:

If there's a divorce, children who are covered at any
time - the natural children, biological children -
shoul d retai n coverage.

CHAI R SEATON added that "dependents are only through their term
of dependency." He offered further clarification.

11: 36: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG added that a child who is adopted
during a nenber's enploynent would have the sane legal rights as
a biological child.

M5. M LLHORN confirned that's correct.

11: 37: 47 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Ms. MIllhorn to shed light on [subsection
(g9)], page 16, which read as foll ows:

(g) The nedical and optional insurance prem uns
owed by the person who elects coverage under (b) of
this section shall be deducted from the health
rei nbursenent account. If the amount of the health
rei nbursenent account becones insufficient to pay the
prem unms, the person who el ects coverage under (a) of
this section shall pay the premuns directly.

11:38: 57 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 9, 2005



M5. M LLHORN said [subsection (g)] allows for the prem um anount
to be deducted from the health reinbursenent account. In
response to a remark from Chair Seaton, she confirned that if
the health reinbursenent account runs out and the person wants
to maintain coverage, he/she would have to pay the prem um

11:39: 25 AM

M5. M LLHORN, in response to Representative Gardner, said if a
person fails to make a prem um paynent, he/she would be given
approximately a 60-day notice period that coverage is about to
| apse. She added, "It would go back to the date they need to
make the premium and it would go back to the date to ensure
there's no break in coverage. But ... if they go beyond that
point, then they would not receive coverage." In response to a
followup question from Representative Gardner, she clarified
that if a person exceeds that period and the coverage conpletely
| apses, that person would not be able to reinstate coverage.

11:41: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "If ny HRA is exhausted, as you
nmenti oned, and January and February are the nmonths when | don't
have any noney in there, and | haven't paid anything, but |'ve

accunul ated expenses, do you pay those wth that 60-day
ext ensi on, or not?"

M5. M LLHORN answered yes, "so long as you're within that tine
period and if you did have nedical expenses that were incurred
during that time period, you would ... pay your premuns and it
woul d reinstate your coverage. It would go back to the |ast
date that you were covered, and it would pay those expenses."

11:42: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified, "I was rather thinking in ternmns:
You really don't care; you're not going to pay them ever. You
still cover me for those two nonths?"

M5. M LLHORN answered yes.

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to subsection (h), which read as
fol | ows:

(h) The adm nistrator shall set separate retiree

health coverage premuns for participants who are
Medi care eligible and for participants who are not yet

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 9, 2005



Medi care eligible. An increase in the prem um anount
may not exceed five percentage points annually. A
participant's share of the applicable prem um shall be
determ ned according to (i) of this section.

CHAI R SEATON said, "M understanding was that the 5 percent
limt on escalation was on what the system would pay, but as |
read this you're saying that we're capping the whole prem um and
just telling Aetna, 'Eat it,' because you're going to provide
these nedical benefits and we're limting to 5 percent grow h.
Do we have this 5 percent in the wong pl ace?"

M5. MLLHORN said it sounds like there may be an issue there.

11:44: 21 AM

CHAI R SEATON said the intent is to say that a prem um subsidy is
provi ded based on the nunber of years served, but that prem um
subsidy is capped so that it cannot grow at over 5 percent a
year .

M5. M LLHORN responded that's correct.

CHAI R SEATON said, "And so, don't ... believe this |anguage here
because it's in the wong place."

11:45: 17 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Representative

Gruenberg, repeated her previous explanation of the notification
period soneone would receive if he/she failed to nmake a paynent.
In response to a followup questions from Representative
G uenberg, she said this is not a change from current law.  She
said she supposes there would be discretion by the PERS and TRS
Boards; however, if a person was given a |onger period of tine,
the plan would be exposed to additional costs. She said it
would be a policy call of the legislature if it wanted the
division to adopt a regulation to look at circunstances on a
case- by-case basis. That could be done through statute or by
maki ng a recommendation to the division. She said she has not
had the personal experience whereby she has w tnessed injustice
occurring because that provision does not currently exist.

11:49: 54 AM

M5. LEA noted that there currently is a situation involving an
alternate payee who did not make a prem um paynent. That person

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 9, 2005



appealed to the board. The board did not find extenuating
circunstances for that person not to have nade the prem um
paynment and upheld the adm nistrator. That person then took the
case to superior court. Ms. Lea said she believes the court
found in favor of the division, as well.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG concl uded, "So, <currently the board
does have jurisdiction to consider such a claim"”

M5. LEA answered that's correct. She said the board can
consider any health claim other than one regarding [that which
is] "usual and custonmary."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if that would continue to be the
case under [HB 238].

M5. LEA offered her understanding that HB 238 would not change
the authority of the board.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked that Ms. Lea and Ms. M| horn |et
him know if, during the discussion of the bill, they see that
t hat provi sion woul d be changed.

11:51:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if, for exanple, the board can step
in for someone who is nmentally ill and has gone beyond the tine
all owed to m ss paynent.

M5. LEA answered that's correct.

11:52:22 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to subsection (i), which read as
fol | ows:

(i) The portion of the cost of prem uns payable
by the participant is 70 percent if the nmenber had 10
years of service; for each additional year of service
after the nenmber's 10th year of service, the cost of
prem uns decreases by three percentage points;
however, the m ninmum enployee portion of the prem um
is 10 percent if the menber has 30 or nore years of
servi ce.

CHAI R SEATON said this is a bit of a change from sonme of the
ot her schedul es. He said, "I incorporated this in here because

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- April 9, 2005



| have trouble with the policies that junp and ... make people
make deci sions based on, 'Ch, |I've got to stay four years to get
to the next category,' or 'I may as well quit because | have to
be here three nore years before | can get any nore health care
benefits.'"™ He said this is a policy call.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he supports Chair Seaton in this
matter.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS echoed that support.

11:54: 23 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
the division doesn't have a problem with the benefits, as a
matter of policy, because it is the purview of the legislature
to make that decision. She said, "W would ... re-cost that, so
that the nenbers know what that change nay be as far as [an]
i ncrease or nonetary cost associated with that."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that there would be a nore
positive fiscal note under Version L than the current system

M5. M LLHORN stated her understanding of the |anguage in Version
L is that a nmenber would pay 3 percent |less for each year of
service. She asked if that is accurate.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "So, you're saying it actually
woul d cost the systemnore.”

M5. M LLHORN answered that's correct.

CHAI R SEATON said, "It would have kept the person at the higher
contribution level until they reached the step.”

M5. M LLHORN concurr ed.

11:57: 31 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to subsection (j), which read as
foll ows:

(1) The eligibility for retiree major nmedi cal
i nsurance coverage for an alternate payee under a
qualified donmestic relations order shall be determ ned
based on the eligibility of the nenber to elect
cover age. The alternate payee shall pay the ful

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 9, 2005



monthly premium for retiree nmjor nmedical insurance
cover age.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to have additiona
conversation regarding this issue.

CHAI R SEATON said the intent in this language is to ensure that
the prem um paid does not exceed the premum that would have
been paid through to the nenber.

11:59: 45 AM

M5. MLLHORN said she and Ms. Lea found the first sentence in
subsection (j) to be confusing and did not know if, based on a
nmenber's eligibility to elect coverage, it somehow m ght denote
that the cost to the nenber would be attached to the eligibility
portion for the nenber, and, if so, if it would be based on the
criteria set out for the nenber. She added, "Because to us, the
alternate payee would be fully responsible for 100 percent of
the premum™

CHAI R SEATON asked if this | anguage would jive in court.

12:01:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that first sentence is a matter of
who owns [the nmjor nedical insurance coverage] and whose
eligibility triggers it. He said, "This is a very inportant
issue in famly law." He stated there are two ways a qualified
donmestic relations order (QRO - pronounced "qua-dro") can be
done. One way is to access the fornmer spouse's benefits. The
other is to have a separate account and eligibility at the tine
the QDRO is entered. He said this becones inportant when, for
exanple, a bitter spouse won't retire so a forner spouse can't
access the retirenment benefit.

12: 03: 04 PM

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Guenberg to draft a white
paper outlining the options.

12: 03: 54 PM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to [page 17, lines 11-14], which
read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 31- April 9, 2005



(2) "retires directly from the plan" neans
that the nmenber is an active nenber at the tine that
t he menber applies to t he adm ni strat or for
appoi nt nent to retirenent and that the nenber
continues as an active nenber up through the day
before the day the nenber is appointed to retirenent.

CHAI R SEATON indicated that there had been a question in the
past about perhaps requiring that a person com ng back to work
do so for 12 nonths before retiring, so that sonebody couldn't
come back to work for just one day and have his/her [plan]
reacti vat ed. He asked if language to that effect should be
added to line 13.

MS. M LLHORN deferred to Ms. Lea.

12: 06: 23 PM

M5. LEA addressed the |anguage: "and that the nenber continues
as an active nenber up through the day before the day the nenber
is appointed to retirenent.” She said, "Since retirenent

appointnments are the first of the nonth, that would require
everyone to termnate on the |ast day of the prior nonth and not
earlier.”

12: 06: 55 PM

CHAIR SEATON indicated that that portion of [paragraph (2)]
could be deleted and in its place could be inserted, "and was an
active nmenber for the previous 12 nonths."
M5. LEA said that would take care of that.

CHAI R SEATON asked if any conmttee nenber would have a problem
wi th doing that, and he said he would flag that |anguage.

12: 07: 29 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked for a definition of "qualified
donestic rel ati ons order".

CHAI R SEATON explained it's when a court decides that a person

who has been with a spouse for a significant amount of tine is
entitled to part of that spouse's retirement benefit.

12:08:42 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- April 9, 2005



CHAI R SEATON directed attention to Section 13, page 18, which
read as foll ows:

*Sec. 13. AS 39.30.090(a) is anmended to read:

(a) The Departnent of Admnistration may
obtain a policy or policies of group insurance
covering state enpl oyees, persons entitled to coverage
under AS 14.25.168, 14.25.480, AS 22.25.090, AS
39. 35. 535, 39. 35. 870, or f ormer AS  39. 37. 145,
enpl oyees of other participating governmental units,
or persons entitled to coverage under AS 23.15. 136,
subject to the follow ng conditions:

12: 09: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if the use of the word "insurance"
i s okay.

M5. M LLHORN answer ed yes.

12:09:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to Section 12, page
18, which read as foll ows:

*Sec. 12. AS 14.40.671(e) is anmended to read:

(e) An enployee whose rights to transfer
assets out of a state retirement system are subject to
a qualified domestic relations order is entitled to
transfer assets from the state retirement system to
the program only if the requirenents for receiving a
refund under AS 14.25.150(b), 14.25.400, [OR] AS
39. 35.200(c), or 39.35.790, as appropriate, are net.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated he thinks it's inportant that
DRCs cover all types of benefits and he asked, "Is there
anything that's being omtted?"

M5. M LLHORN said she doesn't think so.

M5. LEA concurred, because she said, "It's talking about
transferring assets out of the DC plan."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Do any of these people ever
have ... any benefits that are in any of the other state
retirement systens - the National CGuard retirement system or a
judicial retirement systenf"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 9, 2005



12:11:40 PM

MS. LEA responded that currently there are nenbers of PERS who
also have entitlenents under the National Guard retirenent
system or the judicial system who also have benefits rights in
TRS. The only two systens that will recognize service in the
other systenms are TRS and PERS; the judicial and National Guard
systens have no provisions for any benefits that are being paid
out of the other systens. In response to a question from
Representati ve G uenberg, she explained that PERS and TRS have
that recognition nostly because a | ot of schoolteachers begin as
aides or non-teaching positions and then go into a teaching
posi tion. She said that ability to cross over is called,
"“conditional service retirenent benefit."

12: 13: 18 PM

CHAI R SEATON noved on to new |anguage added in Section 13,
begi nning on page 18, |ine 25, and continuing through page 19,
line 3, which read as foll ows:

(B) require the insurance plan to provide a
preferred drug list or forrmulary and nust provide that
beneficiaries use the appropriate nedication on the
preferred drug list or pay the difference in cost
between the nedication listed on the preferred drug
list and the <cost of a nonfornulary nedication;
however, if a nedication is not on the preferred drug
list as a generic or nongeneric drug, the insurance
plan shall cover the cost of the nedication. For
pur poses of this subpar agr aph, a nonf ormul ary
nedi cation is one that is not |listed on the fornulary,
such as a nongeneric form of the nedication when a
generic formof the nedication is in the fornulary.

CHAI R SEATON said there are savings through use of generic drugs
that the PERS and TRS Boards have been voluntarily trying to
stinul at e. The savings could be up to $6.5 mllion a year.
There have been indications that putting this |anguage in the
bill mght be seen as limting. He noted that there is a letter
included in the conmttee packet fromthe Departnent of Health &
Social Services that lists 12 possibilities for savings. The
guestion, he explained, is whether a letter of intent should be
drafted, directing the admnistrator to acconplish all savings

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- April 9, 2005



applicable rather than designating it in statute. He asked Ms.
M1l horn for feedback on this issue.

12:15: 34 PM

M5. M LLHORN said the conm ssioner currently has the authority
to nmake changes to the active and retiree plans, and two

vehicles are used to acconplish that: One is through a health
benefits evaluation committee, which is a group conprised of
managenent and |abor that |ooks at the plan provisions. In the
past several years, the group has, to a |arge degree, considered
cost contai nnent issues. After review by the group, those
particular issues conme through the division and go to the
comm ssioner for final approval. She said the process is

ef fective, because it allows the comm ssioner an ongoi ng process
avai l able for making plan changes, and that discretion is

sonething that the division would like to retain. The second
vehicle is a simlar process done through a retiree health group
t hat consi ders initiatives and comes forward W th
recommendat i ons. She said the last tinme that group net it
addressed approximately six initiatives, one of which speaks to
the issue of generic drugs and a closed fornulary. She
reiterated that she thinks it works well to allow the

commi ssioner the final authority and flexibility to nmake
changes.

M5. M LLHORN said the comm ssioner has tasked the division to
|l ook at cost initiatives, including positive open enroll nent.
She stated her intent to provide information to the conmmttee
menbers regarding all the initiatives that have happened in the
| ast couple of years for the active and retiree plans. She
reported that the positive open enrollnment should produce a cost
savings of $4 nmllion to the active plan and $16 to the retiree
pl an.

12: 18: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG i ndicated that [the previously noted
subparagraph (B)] is not sonmething that the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee should get into, but it is a matter for the
House Heal th, Education and Soci al Services Standing Conmittee.

CHAIR SEATON said the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee recently passed a preferred drug
list, but the House State Affairs Standing Commttee is the one
that |looks at the issues of retirement and benefits. He
indicated that the potential for savings could be increased if

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- April 9, 2005



the use of generic drugs were made a requirenent rather than a
vol untary acti on.

12:21: 20 PM

M5. M LLHORN responded that the division has |ooked at this
i ssue, has worked with the boards, and is ready to inplenent
sonmet hing that "l ooks very nmuch like this."

12:21:39 PM

CHAI R SEATON said he doesn't have a problem nmintaining the
flexibility, but he thinks the committee is in agreenent that it
wants cost efficiencies inplenmented in the system as soon as
they are applicable and the division has the authority to do so.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO related that when a pharmaceutical conpany
comes out with new drugs, generic drugs are soon to follow

CHAIR SEATON noted that there is a letter [included in the
comittee packet ] from [ Comm ssioner Joel G | bertson],
Department of Health and Social Services, which lists a dozen
ways to save noney through a conprehensive pharnacy program He
suggested that the commttee could include a letter of intent
asking the admnistrator to consider and inplenent good
alternatives as soon as possi bl e.

12: 23: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested replacing [subparagraph (B)]
with "shall participate in cost-saving neasures recommended by
the adm ni strator and approved by the board."

12: 24: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested a third approach, which would
be to add a tenporary section that would "basically have the
same kind of a concept and a report to the legislature on the
i npl ementation of these reforns at the beginning of the next
session.”

12: 25: 00 PM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to Chair Seaton, said all the ideas
are good and the division could do what the commttee desires.
Regardi ng Representative Gardner's suggestion, she said:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- April 9, 2005



The board neets every so often and the division
actually can inplement cost-savings mneasures on a

faster order. It's good to have the board invol ved
because they can look at that issue, as well. But
just for exanple, there's an issue that they have been
studying for sonme period of tine: ... disease

managenent is an area that right now the federal
governnent is going to have a pilot project on for
Medicare to look at .... And | think that that pilot
project is approximately three years.

Vell, with disease managenent, when the board studied
that for sone period of time - a year and a half,
al nost two years - Aetna |ooked at what the cost was
and the cost to the plan would be $260, 000 or $300, 000
a year. And it was a two-year pilot project that we
would not have a return on investnent for that
expenditure, so about $600,000 for that two-year
peri od. And then what happens is that ... - because
it was on a voluntary basis for diabetes and heart
conditions - ... if the person was Medicare eligible,
the savings would accrue to Medicare. And we can't
treat our population pre-65 any differently than we
woul d post - 65.

12: 26: 51 PM

So, when that reconmmendati on was studied, the analysis
was done, [and] the cost was determ ned, we put that
forward, and the board recommended that we enter into
t hat particular initiative. However, when the
conmmi ssi oner | ooked at that, he |ooked at the cost to
the plan; he |ooked at the two-year pilot project; he
| ooked at the savings possibly never comng to the
di vision, but actually accruing to Medicare; [and] he
said, "No, not at this tine." That's an initiative
the board still wants to pursue. And | think that by
| ooking at the pilot project that Medicare has now
established, and letting that run its course, it wll
determine what the research concludes on the cost-
savings to plans. So, perhaps if Medicare ends up
finding that accrued savings and has that plan
avai l able, then other plans would benefit from that,
as well.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 37- April 9, 2005



So, | guess ny point is that sometimes by |eaving the
board with the final approval, ... there's timng
ki nds of issues, and there nay be sone di sagreenent.

12: 28: 08 PM

CHAIR SEATON asked Ms. MIllhorn to draft |Ianguage for the
comm ttee based on Representative Gardner's idea.

12: 30: 25 PM

CHAI R SEATON, in response to a comrent from Representative Lynn
regarding two itens in the previously nentioned letter from the
comm ssioner of the Departnent of Health and Social Services,
indicated that the commttee's |evel of expertise does not
i nclude addressing the itens in detail.

12: 30: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested taking the concept in
[ subparagraph (B)] and putting it in a separate bill. He said
it's inmportant, but it goes a little bit beyond HB 238.

CHAI R SEATON responded that the conmttee could talk about that
at a different tine.

12:32:40 PM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
she thinks the | anguage on page 19, paragraph (2) is fine.

CHAIR SEATON, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, said he thinks "children chiefly dependent"” relates to
the Internal Revenue Service's way of saying a mmjority of
dependency.

12: 33: 34 PM

M5. MLLHORN said the division uses that term nology. I n
response to a question from Chair Seaton regarding the neaning
of "dual choice requirenment” on page 19, line 18, she said she

woul d have to research an answer.

12: 34: 45 PM

CHAI R SEATON turned to page 20, lines 13-16, which read as
fol |l ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 38- April 9, 2005



(7) A person receiving benefits under AS
14.25.110, AS 22.25, AS 39.35, or fornmer AS 39.37 my
continue the life insurance coverage that was in
effect under this section at the tine of termnation
of enpl oynent wth the state or partici pating
governmental unit.

CHAI R SEATON asked if that is existing statute.

M5. LEA answered yes. She said that current |anguage applies to
the state's optional |ife insurance plan.

CHAIR SEATON, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, clarified the state and enployee division of the
contribution rate shown on page 20, |ines 19-22.

12: 37: 56 PM

CHAI R SEATON pointed out |anguage that was not transferred
correctly from the prior version to Version L: On page 20,
lines 25-26, "persons over 65" should read "Medicare eligible
persons”, and "age 65" should read "Medicare eligible age".

12: 38: 39 PM

CHAIR SEATON turned to page 21, lines 5-7, which read as
fol |l ows:

(12) Each licensee holding a current
operating agreenent for a vending facility under AS
23.15.010 - 23.15.210 shall be covered by the group
policy that applies to governnmental wunits other than
the state.

CHAI R SEATON said he would like to know why this |anguage is in
the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG read the statute, which he said has to
do with vocational rehabilitation

12: 40: 24 PM

KATHERI NE SHOW5, Staff to Representative Paul Seaton, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Seaton, sponsor

said the drafter of the bill informed her that the |anguage is
in the bill in order to include "a certain type of enployees

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 39- April 9, 2005



that the state hires, ... wusually developnentally disabled or

blind. " She offered an exanple. She explained, "It doesn't
refer to the retirenment plan, per se, but it refers to the group
insurance that the state contracts for all active ... and
retired enployees. So, it's just ... language that needs to be

i ncl uded, but doesn't inpact the retirenment system™

12:41: 12 PM

CHAI R SEATON asked Ms. MIlhorn to address the next portion of
the bill on page 21.

12:42: 08 PM

M5. MLLHORN directed attention to line 11, where a provision
est abli shes that new nenbers enrolled under the plan would have
a health reinbursenent arrangenent. She highlighted the
| anguage begi nning on line 19, which read:

(a) The purpose of the plan is to allow nedical care
expenses to be reinbursed from individual savings
accounts established for qualified participants.

12:42:52 PM

CHAI R SEATON asked everyone to review this portion of Version L.
He said it wuld be good to get the previously flagged
areas/ideas for anendnents in witing. He characterized the
bi ggest issues as enconpassing health benefits, including pre-
Medi care, post-Medicare, and the decisions related to health
rei mbur senent accounts.

12:44: 17 PM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, confirmed that health reinbursenent accounts (HRAs) are
accounts into which nenbers can deposit pre-tax nobney to spend
on an as-needed basis.

CHAI R SEATON noted that available to the comrittee are printouts
that show different contribution anmunts over 20, 30, and 40
years, how they would grow, and what the expected prem uns woul d
cost for health care plans. He said his staff would distribute
t hose printouts to commttee nenbers.

[ House Bill 238 was heard and hel d.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 40- April 9, 2005



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmmttee neeting was adjourned at
12: 45: 40 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -41- April 9, 2005



